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PROCEEDI NGS

M5. CHASE: This is the Town
Clerk of Kure Beach, and | call the
Board of Adjustnent neeting for Novenber
26t h, 2024, to order. And | opened the
meeting. Can | please get a notion to
appoi nt a chairperson pro temfor the
nmeeting tonight?

MR. MCNEELY: Make a notion to
appoi nt John as pro temchair for the
meeting tonight.

MR SELIG  Second.

M5. CHASE: All in favor.

( MULTI PLE AYES.)

M5. CHASE: John, you can take
over fromthere --

MR. NADEAU: Al right. Wwell,
t hank you very nuch.

M5. CHASE: -- with your order
of busi ness, please.

MR. NADEAU:. Bear with ne --

M5. CHASE: Actually, sorry.
Start at the adoption of agenda. Can
you nake a notion to adopt the agenda

and then go fromthere.
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VR.

MCNEELY: Yes. | make a

notion to adopt the agenda.

VR.
IVS.
MR.
V5.
chair, so --
MR.
IVS.
you.
VR.
IVS.
favor?
MR.
V.

NADEAU: 'l second.
CHASE: Who seconds?
NADEAU: | will.

CHASE: But you're the

NADEAU: | know.
CHASE: -- a second besi des
SELI G "1l second.

CHASE: Thank you. Al in

( MULTI PLE AYES.)
NADEAU:. G eat.
CHASE: We have no public

comrent toni ght.

MR.
coment s.
IVS.
of busi ness.
MR.
IVS.
MR.

NADEAU: No public

CHASE: So go to your order
It's right there.

NADEAU: Ckay.

HATCHER: Ckay.

NADEAU: So -- wel |,

wel cone everybody. This is an
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evidentiary hearing under Town of Kure
Beach Code of Ordi nances 12.06. 040,
Appeal s of Adm ni strative Decisions; and
12. 06. 050, quasi-judicial procedures on
t he appeal of an adm nistrative decision
submtted by Thomas and Vanessa Deeri ng,
t he appel |l ants, concerning the property
| ocated at 504 Fi sher Boul evard Sout h,
Kure Beach, North Carolina. That's the
property.

The appel l ants are seeking
relief froma decision by the Town's
former building inspector that the
| ocation of the air conditioner on the
property is in violation of the code
set back requirenents.

Sol will remnd the board
menbers here, our instructions are -- in
maki ng our factual determ nations, board
menbers may only consi der conpetent
material, substantial evidence from
parti es who have standi ng, not expert
opi ni on testinony, including opinions
related to dimnution of property val ues

and traffic safety issues, may not be
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considered in making findings of fact.
The Board is not precluded fromrelying
on evidence that would not be adm ssible
under the North Carolina Rul es of

Evi dence, if the evidence appears to be
sufficiently trustworthy and was

adm tted under such circunstances that

It was reasonable for the Board to rely
upon it.

The Board shall nake findings
of fact and identify the evidence
supporting each finding. And we've been
gi ven a worksheet to help us out with
t hat .

Under Kure Beach Code
12.06.05.J, the Board may reverse,
affirm or nodify, wholly or partly, the
deci si on appeal ed from and shal |l nake
any order, requirenent, decision, or
determ nation that ought to be made. A
quasi -j udi ci al decision shall be based
upon conpetent, material, and
substantial evidence in the record. The
Board' s decisions shall -- will be set

forth in witing and delivered to the
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appel l ants in accordance with provisions
of the Kure Beach Code 12.06.05.J. And
for the purposes of this hearing, the
Town attorney will be appearing in an
advi sory capacity for the Board and not
as an advocate for any party.

Wth that, | think we need to
pol | board nmenbers and ask each of you
whether -- to state whether conflict of
I nterest exists, due to direct financial
benefit, bias, or fixed opinion,
undi scl osed outside contacts, or a close
famly or comrercial tie. And if a
conflict does exist, you, as a nenber,
w |l be asked to recuse yourself from
the hearing, and the Board will vote to
excuse that nmenber fromvoting on this
matter.

So, | guess, starting here, do

we have any conflict?

M5. HATCHER: | do not have a
conflict.

MR. MCNEELY: | do not.

MR. SELIG No conflict.

MR. NADEAU. GCkay. | do not
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2 to proceed.

3 So in adm ni stering the oath,
4 do you help us with that, Beth, or is

5 that sonmething | do?

6 M5. CHASE: You -- you are

7 going toread it --

8 MR. NADEAU:. | do that.

9 M5. CHASE: -- |I'mactually

10 going to take the oath. So we'll stand
11 over there and you'll read it --

12 MR NADEAU: Ckay.

13 M5. CHASE: -- out, and then
14 we'll repeat after you; okay?

15 MR. NADEAU. We all stand over
16 here then?

17 M5. CHASE: Not you.

18 MR NADEAU: Ckay.

19 M5. CHASE: We're the ones

20 testifying to you.

21 MR. NADEAU. ©h, okay. | don't
22 remenber this happening before. W

23 al ways do this? | guess |I've forgotten.
24 Al right.

25 M5. HATCHER: W do it often
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enough.
MR. NADEAU:. |'Ill ask you all
to raise your right hand, place your

| eft hand on the Bible, and repeat after

ne.
(THE OATH WAS ADM NI STERED. )
MR. NADEAU:. Thank you. So

with that, | think we're ready to hear

testinmony. And you'll kick that off,
Bet h?

M5. CHASE: Yeabh.

MR. NADEAU:. All right.

M5. CHASE: |'IIl start. | am
just entering into the record tonight
the followi ng exhibits. You have al
received 1 through 8, but I will read
themout individually. So Exhibit 1 is
the application of the appeal.

Exhibit 2 is the agency appoi nt nent

form Todd Piper is the appointed
agency, for the record. Exhibit 3 is
record of decision. Exhibit 4 is notice
of hearing. Exhibit 5is the mailed
notice of certification. Exhibit 6 is

t he posted notice of certification.
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Exhibit 7 is the notice affidavit. And
Exhibit 8 is the e-mail to the applicant
and to the Board of the record.

Do you guys have any questi ons

MR. NADEAU:. No questions?

MR. MCNEELY: No questions.

MR. NADEAU:. Thank you. Ckay.
| think next on the list would be
Bet hany White, Director of Devel opnent
and Conpliance for Kure Beach. Hey, how

are you?

M5. WH TE: Good evening, board
menbers. | would like to tender into
the -- exhibits into the record. | have

a meno for the board nenbers.

MR. NADEAU:. Thank you.

M5. WH TE: Uh-huh. Try not
trip over these cords. | think | got
two there.

M5. HATCHER: Thank you.

MS. WHITE: And this is Exhibit
9 for the record.

So ny nane is Bethany Wite. |

amthe Director of Devel opnment and
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Conpl i ance and the buil di ng i nspector
for the Town and the current buil ding

I nspector on this project. | have a
meno here. It's basically a tineline.
|"mjust going to read through it, and
then I'lI|l answer any questions that you
may have.

504 Fi sher Boul evard South is
| ocated in the RA-3 District, and it's a
new single-famly dwelling currently
under construction.

The building permt was applied
for by Todd Piper of Tidal Wave
Construction on 12/29/2023, and was
approved and i ssued on January 12t h,
2024, by the Town's fornmer buil ding
| nspect or, John Bat son.

On August 27th, '24, | was
notified by Chris Smth, the
superintendent to Todd Pi per of Tidal
Wave Construction, that there was a
possi bl e setback issue with the
nmechani cal equi pnment brought onto the
south side of the property, which has a
5 foot setback. He inquired about the
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exceptions for encroachnent of

mechani cals in the Town code. 15.36.010
of Kure Beach code |ists exceptions to
set backs. Exception S states,

mechani cal equi pnent can be within 5
foot -- can be within 5 foot of
structure served when in the required 10
foot yard of a corner lot. There are no
ot her exceptions for nechanical that's
witten into our code.

On August 30th, 2024, | net
with Chris Smth on site to discuss the
set back issue, review the plans approved
by the Town, and to di scuss possible
solutions. | advised that with the
nmechani cal equi pnment in the setback, the
proj ect would not pass final inspection
and I would not be able to issue a
Certificate of Qccupancy. | expl ai ned
the options for appeal, variance, and
text anmendnent.

Upon review of the original
plan submtted to the Town on January
4t h, 2024, | noted that both the

architectural plans and structural plans
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clearly showed the equi pnent placed on
the south side of the property. The
site plan confirnmed the equi pnent woul d
encroach into the required 5 foot

set back.

And on Cctober 3rd, 2024, |
confirmed via e-nmail to Todd Pi per that
the plan submitted to the Town on
January 4th, 2024, did show the

mechani cal equi pnment encroaching into

the 5 foot side setback, and these plans

were reviewed and approved by the

previ ous buil ding i nspector.

And on COctober 14th, 2021, Todd

Piper did bring the application for
appeal to ne that's before you today.
Any questions?

M5. HATCHER. | -- | kind of
have a questi on.

M5. WH TE:  Sure.

M5. HATCHER: It took eight
nont hs bef ore anybody noticed this? |
nmean, you -- you gave the permt on
12/29. But then 8/27, nobody noticed

this until then; is that -- | nean, is
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t hat what |' m understandi ng?

M5. WHITE: Yeah. That's
actually -- that -- that's pretty
typical of it wouldn't come up until the
fram ng i nspection.

M5. HATCHER: Ckay.

M5. WVHHTE: So we woul d have
done a foundation inspection for the
I nspection in the beginning. Oher than
the original plan reviews, you wouldn't
know where the --

MS. HATCHER.  Okay.

M5. WHI TE: -- nechani cal
equi pnment was going to going to until
the framng --

M5. HATCHER: So that it's not
out of the ordinary?

M5. WHI TE: -- inspection.

Yeah.

M5. HATCHER: (kay.

MR. MCNEELY: But -- but you
didn't notice it, they brought it to you
that they were out of conpliance?

M5. WHITE: No. As far as I'm

aware, | believe that Chris Smth was
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br ought onboard kind of in the m ddle of
the project --

MR, MCNEELY:  Uh- huh.

M5. WH TE: -- but that m ght
be sonething nore for himto answer
than --

MR MCNEELY: So --

M5. WHI TE: But, yes, it was
brought to ny attention by --

MR. MCNEELY: So it was brought
to you attention by thenf

M5. WHI TE: He wanted to ask
what the -- what our allowances were for
encroaching into the setback. Because
he was concerned that it was going to be
in the setback there. It was probably
ri ght around there --

MR MCNEELY: It is --

M5. WHITE: -- right before the
fram ng was done.

MR PIPER W net on site with
our pool contractor.

THE COURT REPORTER: |'m sorry,
sir, what's your nane?

MR PIPER So ny nane is Todd
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Pi per.

THE COURT REPORTER  Ckay.

MR PIPER So we net on site
Wi th our pool contractor, and he -- he
brought -- he said sonething didn't seem

right to him

MR. MCNEELY:  Uh- huh.

MR. PIPER And we had the site
plan. And we said -- and this is where
this -- the pool equipnment and
everything was designated. And so at
that point, we got in touch wth Bethany
and said, we need to -- we need to find
out what's going on here. Because at
that point -- just a week later -- like
at that point, the house had
nmechani cal |y been conpleted. W had our
-- we had our fram ng inspection on
Septenber 11th, just a week later. But
prior to that, all the trades had been
conpleted. The air conditioner, the
pl unbi ng, everybody el se was done. So
it was the pool contractor. And as soon
as we found out fromthe pool

contractor, we got ahold of Bethany.
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And as she said, we had a neeting August
30th to -- to |like neasure everything
out. W needed to nmake sure -- we
needed a surveyor there, we needed to
make sure that we had a foundation
survey, when the foundation was
install ed, and that was in conpliance.
But we needed a surveyor out there to
make sure that the property pins we were
nmeasuring fromwere exactly in a correct
position before we made it in -- you
know, we -- before we noved any further.

MR. ELDRI DGE: Chairperson, |
have one question, if | may.

MR. NADEAU:. Sure.

MR. ELDRIDGE: 1Is the -- what
Is in the setback? The air conditioner
or all the mechanicals or sone of the
mechani cal ?

MS. WVHHTE: OCh, it's the
hookups for all the nechanical.

MR. ELDRIDGE: Al right.

M5. WHITE: They're not --
they're not actually there yet; right,
Todd?
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Page 18
MR. PIPER. Yeah. No, no. W

were -- no. W're -- we're -- we're
delayed in installing them

M5. WH TE:  Yes.

MR, MCNEELY: But it wll --
will be just a conpressor, or wll it be

t he HVAC system and a conpressor?

MR PIPER So all -- all it"ll
be, it'll be the HVAC conpressors, the
outdoor units. And it'll be the pool

punp unit. And -- and -- and -- but it

-- it's -- it's on the south side, so it
abuts the neighbor's units as well. So
it -- it -- you know, unfortunately

everybody has to have an ugly side of
your house. Like you' ve got to have
your -- you know, your -- your garbage
cans and your air -- air conditioners --
your air conditioning conpressors. And
soit's on the south side, which is the
sane side as the neighbor's. The south
side is the nost hidden from public
view. So that's the side it's on, and
that's the side we showed. W showed it

on the site plan.
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M5. WHHTE: And this is the --
so the setbacks are our |ocal zoning
ordinance. So it -- it wouldn't be
unusual , unless you build here all the
time -- and I'"mguessing it -- the pool
contractor has done projects here before
-- that would really be the only way,
other than us telling you that -- that
-- that's -- it's a local ordinance, not
a state code.

MR. MCNEELY: But isn't it a

standard that there are setbacks in

all --
M5. WH TE: Yeah. It's not
a --
MR. MCNEELY: -- zoning codes?
M5. WHITE: -- building codes
-- yeah. There's -- there's --

di fferent towns have different rules
wi th nmechanicals being in the setback,
not being in the setback --

MR. MCNEELY: Ckay.

M5. WHITE: -- different
encroachnents. Just kind of depends on

where you are.
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MR. PIPER. The Town of
Carolina Beach allows it in the setback.
So I've built in the Town of Carolina
Beach regularly, and the Town of
Carolina Beach allows the air
conditioning units in the setback. So
not hing struck -- struck nme as out of
the ordi nary, neaning --

M5. HATCHER: So have you built
i n Kure Beach before?

MR. PIPER  Yes. Yeah. |'ve
built --

M5. HATCHER: So you knew about
t he set backs?

MR. MCNEELY: You knew?

M5. HATCHER: You didn't see
this com ng?

MR PIPER  No.

M5. HATCHER: | nean |ike on
the --

MR, PIPER  No, nm'am

M5. HATCHER: -- plans and
know ng that the setback was there?

MR. PIPER  So the setback -- |

make sure that | show everything on the
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site plan. So previously -- I'mtrying
to think -- I"'mtrying to think exactly.
But | show everything on the site plan
just for this instance because every
muni ci pality has small vari ations.

M5. HATCHER: Yeabh.

MR PIPER And so | want to
make sure that | provide all the

i nformation for plan review for that

reason.
M5. HATCHER: Yeabh.
MR PIPER |In case -- you
know, for this, like -- so air

conditioning units aren't allowed in the
setback. There's -- there's -- in the
Town of Carolina Beach, they have very
specific cantilever requirenents. [It's
only allowed to be a certain percentage
of the building itself, certain
| nperneable. So it's very inportant to
me that | show exactly what |'mgoing to
construct on the site plan.

M5. HATCHER:  Yeah.

MR. PIPER  And then | allow

the local officials, |ike, you know,
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Bet hany or the Town Zoning officials,
the building inspectors to review those
pl ans, because as nuch as | try and
study the codes, | can't renenber every
si ngl e code.

M5. HATCHER:  Uh- huh.

MR PIPER |'mnot an expert
at every town. | just want to nmake sure
everything | provide for plan reviewis
exactly what | constructed.

MR. NADEAU. So we're going to
-- you're going to probably be up here
to talk to us, right, in a mnute or so?

MR. PIPER  Yes. Yes, sir.

MR, NADEAU. So I -- | guess
"' m nore focused on Bet hany.

M5. HATCHER: Ri ght.

MR. NADEAU. What -- you -- soO
it was approved. You say that the --

t he subm ssion has the information you
need. That it's typical -- the draw ngs
that we have here are typical as what is
nornmally submitted to the Town?

M5. WH TE: Yeah. | nean, the
-- yeah. He -- he submtted the
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requi red plans, structural --

MR. NADEAU:. The draw ngs?

M5. WHITE: -- architectural
site plan --

MR, NADEAU: Yes.

M5. WHITE: -- are required.

Yes. They don't al ways show where the
mechani cal equi pnent wll be. Sonetines
that's an issue that conmes up |ater.
Like | said, it -- it commonly cones up
around the framng inspection tinme, when
it is an issue. But, no, his plans --
yeah, his plans show nore -- nore than
sonme woul d.

MR. NADEAU:. Ckay.

M5. VHHTE: We woul dn't
necessarily -- | mean, we try to nake
sure everybody knows what the setbacks
are, but they aren't always -- the
mechani cal s aren't always on the
original plans that are submtted. And
It wouldn't be a reason for denial, |
mean.

MR. NADEAU:. It would not be a

reason if it was not shown?
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M5. WHITE: No. But we would
say, you know -- well, | nean, nost
likely we woul d ask where they were
going to be, if they weren't shown on
It, to avoid this issue in the future.

MR. MCNEELY: They -- they are
not shown on any of the el evations
t hough.

M5. HATCHER: | don't see --

M5. WH TE: They're shown on
the original site plan.

MR, MCNEELY: Just the site
pl an; they're not shown on the
el evations --

M5. WHHTE: Site plan and
archi tectural draw ngs.

MR. MCNEELY: |'m saying the
el evations of --

MR. ELDRIDGE: Can you point

themto -- can you point himto the page
nunber ?

M. WHITE: | -- | think it's
page 9.

MR. MCNEELY: No. |'m saying

If you go to page 5.
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M5. WHITE: Okay. | think it
I s was page 9.

MR. MCNEELY: Page 13 and

page - -
M5. VHHTE: So the --
MR MCNEELY: -- 11 --
M5. VHHTE: -- site planis

actually a very small --

MR. MCNEELY: | -- | understand
It shows on the site plan.

M5. WH TE:  Yeah.

MR MCNEELY: But the
el evati ons that would show t he

structures do not show on them

M5. HATCHER: | don't see
anyt hi ng.

MR. MCNEELY: The site plan.
If you go to -- it's real small.

M5. HATCHER  Yeah.

MR. MCNEELY: It's one of the
ones you see a little pad, but when you
go to --

MR. NADEAU. My questi on,

Bet hany, is what's -- what's your

procedure? How -- how do you -- when
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you get a set of plans, is there like --
what are you checking for before you
approve it? You know, what --

M5. WHHTE: So we would -- we
woul d check for zoning separately, and
then we would go on to check the
bui | di ng code.

MR. NADEAU. Ckay. So it is
definitely part of the process, to check
and make sure --

M. WVHHTE: [It's part of the
process, yes.

MR. NADEAU:. Ckay.

M5. WHI TE: Sane as the height
limt. We -- we would nmake sure that
they weren't proposing to do anything
t hat was, you know, upwards of 37 feet
hi gh, you know, anything like that, so
-- yeah. So we would catch that and
say, you know, you need to submt
appropri ate plans before we would issue
the permt.

MR. NADEAU:. Ckay. Any
questions?

M5. HATCHER: | have a question
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1 for you, Bethany. John Batson actually
2 was the one that reviewed this and

3 approved it?

4 M5. WH TE: That's correct.

5 M5. HATCHER: |s there a reason
6 he's not here as a w tness?

7 MR. MCNEELY: Wiat's it say?

8 MR. NADEAU:. | can't read it.
9 MR. MCNEELY: | can't read it,
10 ei t her.

11 M5. WHITE: Not really. But |
12 don't know that that was pertinent

13 because - -

14 M5. HATCHER: Ckay.

15 M. WVHHTE: -- | nean, he

16 wouldn't deny that he issued the permt.
17 M5. HATCHER: All right. But
18 it's sonething that he may have seen

19 t hat he thought was --
20 MS. WVHHTE: Yeah. | nmean, |
21 did follow up with himto --
22 M5. HATCHER: Yeabh.
23 M5. WHHTE: -- see if he had
24 any contact or any |ike phone calls or
25 di scussions on it, and he did not. |
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al so have access to his e-mail --

MS. HATCHER.  Okay.

M5. WHHTE: -- from when he was
here. So | -- | looked to see if there
was any kind of side conversation on --

MB. HATCHER  Ri ght.

M5. WVWHHTE: -- on the plans or
anything, and | didn't find anything.

M5. HATCHER: Ckay.

MR, MCNEELY: | can't -- can
you hel p ne on page 167

MR ELDRIDGE: Are you --

MR MCNEELY: It's 33.

MR. NADEAU. Ch, 33, |'msorry.
It's page 16 is the building permt.

MR. NADEAU:. Yeah. Yeah.

MR, MCNEELY: Page 33.

MR ELDRIDGE: Are you
referring to the agenda page nunber or

Exhi bit 3 page nunber?

HATCHER  Exhibit --
MCNEELY: 2 --
HATCHER: -- 33 of 56.

ELDRI DGE: Page 33 of 56.
MCNEELY: Page 33 of 56 --

235 30D
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1 M5. HATCHER:  Yeah.

2 MR. MCNEELY: -- of our packet?

3 MR. NADEAU. O our packet.

4 MR, ELDRI DCGE: Yes.

5 MR. MCNEELY: Wich is page --

6 MR. NADEAU: Shoul d be --

7 MR. MCNEELY: -- 16 of the

8 decision.

9 MR. NADEAU. Page 16 of the --
10 Exhibit 3. W -- we can't read what it
11 says in that little box that's
12 outside the --

13 MR, MCNEELY: Yeabh.

14 MR. NADEAU:. None of us can

15 read that.

16 M5. WVHHTE: Are you -- you're
17 on page 33 of 567

18 MR. MCNEELY: Uh-huh. The

19 ground floor floor plan.

20 M5. WHITE: Yeah. Wat are

21 you - -

22 M5. HATCHER: There is a box --
23 M5. WVHHTE: Onh, the box.

24 MR. MCNEELY: Yeah. What |'m
25 assumng is what the nechanical unit is.
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1 M5. WHITE: HVAC slash -- God,
2 | can't read this on here.

3 MR ELDRIDGE: That's a

4 gquestion you mght want to reserve for

5 M. Piper.

6 M5. WHH TE: Yeah. |'msure he
7 can --

8 MR, MCNEELY: kay.

9 M. WVHHTE: -- | can pull it up
10 on ny conputer and see. Ch, pool

11 equi pnent. Yeah. HVAC, pool. It's

12 just -- | think it's just listing what's
13 in that. That's -- that would be --

14 that's where the nechani cal equi pnent

15 is, inthat line. Sol -- 1 can't read
16 it all.

17 MR. NADEAU. So that's where

18 it's | ocated?

19 M5. WHITE: Yes, that's where
20 it's | ocated.
21 MR. NADEAU:. But the setback's
22 not shown in that draw ng?
23 M5. WHITE: No. That's what
24 the site plan --
25 MR. ELDRI DGE: Can you point us
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to the site plan, please?
MR. MCNEELY: Page 26.
MR ELDRIDGE: Wuld that be

t he agenda packet nunber or the

agenda - -

M5. WHITE: Yes, it's page 26.

M5. HATCHER It goes --

M5. WHHTE: So the site plan is
-- was -- is always the plan that shows
the setbacks on it. So that -- that's

the little one all the way to the
right-hand side. So that shows -- the
dotted line is the setback |ine.

MR, MCNEELY: But | guess ny
guestion is, within that drawing, if
we're tal king page 9, that could be a
sidewal k, it could be a driveway, it
could be a pad. | nean, there's nothing
t hat describes what it is on that plan,
Is there?

M. WHHTE: Well, then when you
-- because when you | ook at the
architectural drawi ngs on the ground
floor and the drawing next to it, it

dentifies what that box is. Wich,
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) ) o Page 32
again, is small witing.

M5. CHASE: Are you talking
about the S29? | can read it, if you
need it.

M5. WH TE: Thank you.

M5. CHASE: It says -- it says,
HVAC/ pool equi pnent pl atform

MR. NADEAU:. | think for ne,
it's, you know, what -- what are you --

Is this typical? In other words, you
woul d approve this? That gives you the
i nformati on that you need, you would
have known this, and you woul d have --
you woul d have approved this as it is,
or you woul d have said, hold on, no,
there's that line there, that's -- what
Is that? And I'll go back and | ook or
-- isthis -- is this typical of what
you woul d get?

M5. WHITE: | nean, yeah, we
see this all the tinme. The protocol
woul d be to -- | would call Todd and be
| i ke, Todd, read your plans. And the
HVAC is in the setback and it can't be

I n the setback, according to our code.
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He woul d submt draw ngs or sonething
different show ng --

MR. NADEAU:. (kay.

M5. WHI TE: Yeah. W would --
we would wait to get drawi ngs that --
that conply to our ordinances before we
woul d issue the permt. That's the
pr ot ocol .

MR. NADEAU. Ckay. And when
you went out there in August, what was
on that spot?

M5. WHI TE: The hookups for the
HVAC equi pnent .

MR. NADEAU:. It was al ready
i nstal | ed?

M. VHHTE: [It's -- yeah.

There's like holes with the wires on the

wal | .

MR. NADEAU. Cot it.

M5. HATCHER: And that's when
you said, | think there's an issue?

M. WHITE: Well, like | said,
it was brought to ny attention prior to
that. And then | went out there to --

to examne it so that we coul d make
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sure.

MR. NADEAU. Any -- has it ever
happened to you before? Any precedent?

MR. MCNEELY: Yeabh.

MR. NADEAU:. | don't know if
that --

M5. VHHTE: Yeah. We --

MR. NADEAU:. -- until an
attorney gets concerned and asks that
question. I'm-- I'mjust curious to
know if there's any precedent for this
bef or e?

M5. VWH TE: You nean in -- in
t he equi pnent being in the setback?

MR. NADEAU:. \Where a -- there's
been an approval, and yet it appears
t hat what was depicted on the draw ng
was not quite in conpliance with the
Town Code.

MS. VWHI TE: | nean, | -- |
honestly haven't run into anything
specifically like this before, but I'm
sure there is.

MR, ELDRIDGE: | think in

quasi -j udi ci al proceedi ngs, the
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precedent is not necessarily binding.

MR. NADEAU:. It's not binding.

MR. MCNEELY: So there is no
precedent binding. Ckay.

MR NADEAU. Ckay. Well, |
think we can cone back to you if we have
nore questions. Anybody has ot her
questions right now, nmaybe we coul d hear
fromthe appellant. Thank you, Bethany.

MR. MCNEELY: | -- | do have
one nore question. Wat -- what if you
run across a situation where the
wiring's not installed properly but per
the drawings and it's not per code, what
do you do then?

M5. WHI TE: The wiring?

MR, MCNEELY: Just -- | just
pi cked the wring.

M5. WVHHTE: Ch, I'm--

MR. MCNEELY: |If sonething el se
IS -- IS -- Is drawn properly -- is
drawn inproperly but it still doesn't
meet code, how do we deal with that?

M5. WHITE: You nean in the

pl an revi ew process or --
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MR MCNEELY: No. Just if it's
not caught in the plan review?

M5. VHHTE: Well, we would --
if it -- if it was not up to code, then
t hey woul dn't pass the current
| nspection -- whatever | was doi ng
woul dn't past the inspection. So they'd
say, you have to bring this up to code.

MR. MCNEELY: Ckay

M5. LEE: (Good evening, nenbers
of the Board of Adjustnent. M/ nane's
Corrie Lee, CGo-r-r-i-e L-e-e. I'man
attorney here in Wl mngton. |
represent the applicant. Thank you for
being here this evening. |'m squinting
at you, it's because | don't have ny
contacts in, not because |'m curious.

Al though | do want to certainly answer
your questions. Thank you for being
here. And if at any point you have any
guestions that | can answer or M. Piper
can answer, please do feel free to stop
me.

As staff pointed out, the

matter that we're here for this evening
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Is a building permt that was issued by
a previous building inspector. And it
was issued in January of this year.
Whi ch did show -- the plans did show
that the nechanical platformfor the
HVAC and pool equi pnment was to be within
the 5 foot setback. That structure has
si nce been substantially conpleted in
conpliance with those approved pl ans,
i ncluding all of the electrical and
mechani cal work that goes into feeding
HVAC units that would be on the side of
the property within the entirety of the
structure itself.

As staff nentioned and as
M. Piper nentioned earlier, it was
di scovered |l ater by one of M. Piper's
contractors that the HVAC pl atform was
going to be wthin the 5 foot setback.
And M. Piper quickly called that out to
the Town of Kure Beach to try to rectify
it.

| wll point out -- and
certainly your attorney can speak to

this -- the matter that you're here for
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this evening is an appeal, an

adm ni strative decision. The request
that we have is the granting of a
variance, as our relief. And |I'm going
to go through with you how to satisfy
those four criteria, as well as the
facts that show that we do satisfy the
criteria for the granting of the

vari ance, in hopes that this Board w |
be inclined to grant variance to our
client, given that they have built this
structure and it would be a significant
hardship for themto tear down a good
portion of what they've done when they
have tried to conply with faith of the
requi renments of the Town of Kure Beach's
code.

The request that we have for
you this evening is relating to Section
15.20.03(a)(4) of the Town of Kure
Beach's Code, which does require 5 foot
si de setbacks. And our request is a
wai ver as it relates to the HVAC
platform So not a waiver of the entire

site setback but sinply a waiver as it
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relates to that platformitself being
able to encroach into the setback
I tself.

The variance criteria that are
statutorily required in order for you to
grant a variance, there are four: It is
that there is an unnecessary hardship
that would result fromthe strict
application of the ordinance; that there
are peculiar conditions that give rise
to the granting of the variance; that it
I's not self-created; and that
substantial justice would be achieved,;
and that the spirit, purpose, and intent
of the ordinance woul d be achi eved by
the granting of the variance.

Looking to satisfying those
criteria in this specific case,

di scussing these three criteria together
makes the nost sense, sinply because
they all do tie intimately together, as
you' ve heard staff and M. Piper already
state. There is an unnecessary hardship
that would result fromthe strict

application of the ordinance. Sinply
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put, our client has put significant tinme
and effort into building the structure

I n conpliance wth the approved pl ans,
and they woul d be needl essly tearing out
essentially all of that nmechanical work
In order to nove the structure to the

ot her side of the house. M. Piper can
speak to where the relocation would be
required to be. But esthetically, it
woul d be in a significantly different

pl ace, and it would | ook nuch different
when it conmes to the Town of Kure
Beach's desire for the general scene of
devel opment .

We had a | ot of conversations
this evening about what it |ooks |ike.
Here is an inmage for your consideration
that shows the current, as of today,
actually, status of the property. As
you can see, the HVAC units have been
stubbed out, for lack of a better term
Al of the nmechanical and ductwork
equi pnent that's required in order to
actually have running systens has been

filtered through the entire house and is
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currently stubbed out to the side of the
property. This property abuts a public
right-of-way on two faces, and so this
was the only real place that it could be
put and -- and be hidden. So that was
part of the rationale.

I"'mglad to bring ny | aptop up
there to show you, if it would be
easier, and if you need that.

MR. NADEAU:. Wuld that -- and
just to confirm it's there on the left
next to the greenhouse?

M5. LEE: Yes, sir. For the
record, I'mgoing to be pointing to the
side of the house where the stub outs
show.

MR. NADEAU:. It's on your right
t here.

MR. MCNEELY: Yeah.

MR. NADEAU:. Right there.

M5. HATCHER. Ch, hey, |'m
| ooki ng at the wong one.

MR. MCNEELY: So | guess, when
the platforms built, how nuch roonis

going to be between the platformand the

Page 41

Legal Media Experts
800-446-1387




Thomas and Vanessa Deering
HEARING, on 11/26/2024

© 00 N o O b~ wWw N P

N DN D D NMNMDNN P P P PP,
aa A~ W N b O © 00 N O O A W N B O

fence?

M5. LEE: How nuch roomw || be
bet ween the platformand the fence?

MR. MCNEELY: Unh- huh.

M5. LEE: | believe it's 2-1/2
feet. And the entire distance between
the houses in total will be 12 feet,
whi ch woul d exceed -- if you have a 5
foot and 5 foot setback, would be 10.
But even if this were to encroach into
the setback on ny client's property, it
woul d still exceed what a m ni mum
set back of where those building were
built would be -- intent to be.

And M. Piper, I'msure, is
glad to answer nore questions to that
effect as well.

As to the peculiarity, I'm
going to show you -- | know we've had
| ots of conversations about where is
this show ng up on our site plans. And
| want to nmake sure it's clear for the
Board, this was on the approved pl an.
That is certainly a peculiar situation

to have. | have represented nultiple
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governnents and clients alike in |and
devel opnent matters, and | can say
certainly it's -- it's uncommon and
pecul iar to have approved pl ans that
allow or at least reflect an ability to
build within a setback. And | want to
go one nore photo so you can see it very
clearly. The HVAC platformvery clearly
on that drawing is within the setback as
del i neated on the site plan that was
submtted to the Town of Kure Beach in
January of this year.

MR ELDRIDGE: Ms. Lee.

M5. LEE: Yes, sir.

MR ELDRIDGE: Is it possible
at sone point that you coul d pinpoint
t hat docunment within Exhibit 3?

M5. LEE: Yes, sir. Certainly.
So to pinpoint that docunent within the
report, it's sheet A-1. It's 9 within
your packet. And | just sinply
screenshotted it, put it in ny
presentation, and highlighted it.

MR. ELDRIDGE: That's page 9 of
the exhibit?
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Page 44
MS. LEE: Yes, sir.

MR ELDRIDGE: All right.
That's very hel pful. Thank you.

M5. LEE: Yes, sir. As to the
actions of the applicant when we | ook at
the granting of a variance, our client
submtted these plans, as M. Piper
stated, in good faith and in an effort
to conply with Town of Kure Beach's Code
of Ordinances and in a belief that the
bui |l di ng i nspector would review themin
full and let himknow if there were any
nodi fications that needed to be nmade in
order to cone into conpliance.

| have included the e-mail that
was sent to M. Piper indicating that
the mechanical platformbeing in a
set back was included as part of that
site plan. And that is wthin your
exhibits as well. There is a series of
e-mails, and I"'mglad to call that out
for you as well. That is going to be on
page 25 of the Record of Deci sion.

MR. ELDRI DGE: Thank you.

M5. LEE: Yes, sir. The |ast
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criteria that we're really concerned
with in this context of the granting of
the variance is that the spirit and

i ntent of an ordinance is satisfied and
that public safety security and
substantial justice is achieved. Wen
you're looking at the spirit and intent
of an ordi nance, the purpose of setbacks
Is typically to ensure a conmon schene
of devel opnent within an area, in this
case the RA-3, and to ensure public
safety. As | nentioned, if both
properties had been built according to
t he m ni num set backs, there would be a
10 foot separation. And in this case,
even with the granting of the variance,
ny understanding -- and M. Piper wll
ensure that I'm-- I"mcorrect on this
-- the separation is 12 feet of those
bui | di ngs.

And when we're tal king about
substantial justice, it would be just
for our client to be able to continue
the building that they put so nuch tine
and effort into; that they have built,
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again, in conpliance wth those approved
plans; and to allow themto continue to
do so so that they don't have to
relocate it and put the HVAC unit in an
area that would be certainly nuch uglier
-- and M. Piper can speak to that --
but al so would cost a significant anpount
of noney and a significant anount of
time to acconplish.

MR, MCNEELY: But | guess
what's to keep the property that you
keep referring to that's -- will be 12
feet, keep themfrombuilding up to
their setback so that there's |l ess than
12 feet between the two units?

M5. LEE: Hypothetically, there
woul d be nothing. But at this present
time, the separation is 12 and a hal f
feet. And to that point, we do have a
signed letter fromthe adjacent property
owner -- that | have included in ny
presentation -- stating -- and it | ooks
like it blacked the signature out, but
it is a signed letter in-- in ny

presentation -- I'mglad to give you
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guys a copy of that -- stating that he

does not object and that his HVAC unit

is on this side as well, and that he is
fine wth the variance bei ng granted.

MR. ELDRI DGE: Chairnman, one
question. M. Lee, are you saying that
i f the mechanical platform goes where
it's now presently indicated, there wll
be 12 feet of separation between the
structures?

M5. LEE: That's ny
understanding. But | would ask that
M. Piper clarify and confirmthat fact.

MR. ELDRI DGE: Thank you.

M5. LEE: Yes, sir. In
summary, | ooking at the factors that go
into play with the granting of a
vari ance, we would ascertain that we
have net those criteria; that we do have
an unnecessary hardship, certainly a
peculiar situation that our client did
not create this hardship. They had
rat her intended to conply at every
juncture. And that the spirit and

I ntent and substantial justice would
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warrant the granting of a variance. |If
the Board has any questions, I'mglad to
answer them and | al so wel cone

M. Piper's comments and testinony as

wel | .

MR. NADEAU. Any questions?

MR. MCNEELY: No questions,
sir.

M5. LEE: No questions. Thank
you. | appreciate it.

MR. NADEAU:. Thank you.

M5. CHASE: Can you neke sure
to send us a copy of that presentation?

M5. LEE: Yeah. | -- | wll
send you a copy. And at this point, |
woul d al so i ke to nove that ny
presentation be admtted into the record
as evi dence.

M5. CHASE: Thank you.

MR, ELDRI DGE: Wat nunber
woul d that be?
CHASE: That woul d be 10.
ELDRI DGE: 10. Thank you.
LEE: Thank you.
NADEAU: All right. Do we

2P 30
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1 have any other --

2 MR. ELDRIDGE: Chairman, let ne
3 foll ow up, please.

4 MR. NADEAU:. Yes, sir.

5 MR, ELDRIDGE: C-o-r-r-i-e

6 L-e-e?

7 MS. LEE: Correct.

8 MR. ELDRI DGE: Thank you.

9 M5. LEE: Thank you.

10 MR. NADEAU. Do we have any

11 ot her folks here tonight that are going
12 to offer any --

13 MR PIPER | nean, I1'd like to
14 speak a little bit.

15 MR. NADEAU: Sure. Cone on up,
16 Sir

17 MR. PIPER Ckay. So ny nane's
18 Todd Piper. | own Tidal Wave

19 Construction. So these are the pl ans.
20 Unfortunately they're -- they're hard to
21 read. But |'ve been a general
22 contractor for close to two decades now
23 at this point. And part of ny plan
24 submttals is always in this order,
25 okay. Because | want the site plan on
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t he sane page as the architectural
plans. It's critical for nme for this,
because it all ows whoever's review ng
the plans to kind of understand the
schenme and the scope of the building.

Unfortunately the site plan a
| ot of tines, you know -- a lot -- a |ot
of times it may not have the proper
| abel i ng of |ike stairways and egress
and things |ike that; where egress goes
toif it's a commercial property, where
egress is on a residential property. So
this would be typical. Al the -- al
t he setbacks, the lot lines are
i ncl uded. It does show the HVAC
platform It's |labeled on this part as
wel | .

| went through all ny e-mails
as well to M. Batson to see if he had
corresponded with nme or anything to
that. | redoubled nmy efforts. | didn't
have any e-mails from M. Batson in
regards to that.

We tal k about -- if we can go

back to the photo -- can we go back to
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your presentation of the photo? So,
yes, so that photo right here. So
currently the platformwould technically
be sonmewhere around 28 inches. W're
going to nake it as small as -- as snal
as possible. In addition, ny clients
have chose to use smaller air
handl ers -- conpressors to limt the
size of it. | do need to have the
ability for technicians to work on the
units as well. So fromthis -- fromthe
units over, we wll have 12 feet from
the units thenselves to the structure
over here. In regards to this custoner,
you know, extending his house or
sonet hing, noving to the setback |ine,
whil e hypothetically that's possible, he
has just invested a | ot of noney in
pavers and fences and he's updated his
property considerably in regards to
t hat .

So when | net Ms. Wihite on site
on August 31st, all of this work here
had been conpleted. So as soon as we

di scovered that there may be sone issue
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with the setback, unfortunately all the
mechani cal work at that tinme had al ready
been conpleted. So it was all done |ike
at that point. It would be a
substantial effort to nove the equi pnent
to any other location in the house. It
has to do with the engineering nore than
anyt hing. Because when that equi pnent
Is run, it's critical we have

| oad- beari ng beans. And by code, we're
not allowed to drill holes and put pipes
t hrough those beans. So it's quite a
task when you decide where it goes.

One of the other questions |
think M. MNeely had is about, if
sonet hi ng was drawn, you know, how woul d
it be approved. So all of that's
controll ed essentially by safety -- by
bui | di ng code and safety. So if
sonething's drawn and it doesn't neet
bui | ding code, unless it's signed off by
an architect or a structural engineer,
then it defaults to building code. 1've
seen things that are signed off by an

engi neer that are different than
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bui | di ng code, but they had a certain
reason why they had done the engi neering
the way they had done it.

In this situation, it's
unfortunate -- | do provide -- on the
buil ding plan, | do provide every bit of
i nformation | can because every -- every
municipality is a little bit different.
Whether it's cantilever area into a
set back, whether it's building in a
setback, it seens |like every area has
their owmn little architectural
requirenments to keep the spirit of the
community. So | had no intent of
creating this hardship for ny custoner.
And as soon as | found out about it, |
| mredi ately contacted Bet hany about it.

MR. MCNEELY: kay. So help ne
there a little bit. You nmake sure that
you check all the cantilevers and areas.
But when you go to our definitions, it's
pretty clear of what our setbacks are.
Did you not go to that detail to | ook at
our --

MR PIPER | --
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MR. MCNEELY: -- setbacks?

MR. PIPER | neke sure they're
proper on the plans. Like I -- 1 make
sure that that -- that is all proper.
Like -- so if you were to have a
cantilever on -- if you were to have a
cantilever, like how many inches init.
The Town of Kure -- Carolina Beach, it's
18 i nches.

MR. MCNEELY: But here again,
the structure's --

M5. HATCHER: You're not in
Carol i na Beach.

MR. MCNEELY: -- not shown on
your pl ans.

MR. PIPER Right. Right.

MR. MCNEELY: Yeah.

MR. PIPER  What |'m saying is,
when | provide plans, | try and neke
sure everything that's on this plan is
what |'m buil ding, where the AC units
are going, where the cantilevers are
going. | do not read through -- I am
not --

MR. MCNEELY: No, no. |'mjust
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1 sayi ng, why would you not show on any of
2 your elevations at all where they --

3 t hey' re goi ng?

4 MR. PIPER Typically --

5 typically you never show the -- the

6 out door equi pnent on your el evations.

7 The -- the -- the elevate -- the -- your
8 out door equi prment is always shown in

9 your overhead. And the mpjority of nost
10 buil ding permts don't even show the --
11 nost buil ders don't show where the

12 out door equi pnent's going to be.

13 M5. HATCHER: | built a

14 house - -

15 MR. PI PER.  Uh- huh.

16 M5. HATCHER: -- in Kure Beach.
17 MR. PI PER.  Uh- huh.

18 M5. HATCHER: So you're talking
19 to sonebody that actually went through
20 the pain of redesigning ny hone because
21 of the setback, and the AC unit, and the
22 propane tank. | had to redesign ny
23 entire corner of ny -- of the hone. So
24 ny buil der knew - -
25 MR PIPER Well, | --
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MS. HATCHER: -- because he's

like | can't do that because of the

set back --

MR. PIPER | would have been
happy - -

M5. HATCHER® -- we can't do
t hat .

MR. PIPER | would have have
been happy to nake any changes required.
| nmean, I -- I'm-- 1 -- you know, | --
| -- 1 didn't -- you know -- | nean, |
showed it on the plans, and | requested
pl an revi ew.

M5. HATCHER: Yeah.

MR. Pl PER: | -- | nean, |
don't --

M5. HATCHER: Well, if I'ma
buil der and | see that, | can tell you
you -- you guys have decided to go to a

smaller unit. Not because it was a --
sonet hi ng that you had pl anned for, but
you're wanting to go to a smaller unit
to make it fit now

MR PIPER No. W're -- we're

just trying to do the best we can to
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conply wwth it. | nean, any -- any unit
would fit there and it woul d be
servi ceable. The service panel's on the
south side of the unit, so they can
service it. W're just doing everything
we can to try and conply. W -- we've
explored -- | spoke to Bethany, and we
explored |like could we cantilever, could
we raise themup |ike off the ground and
try and cantil ever.

M5. HATCHER:  Uh- huh.

MR PIPER It's -- except
we're not -- it's only allowed on the 10
foot side setback. So it doesn't work
on this side. | nean, if it had been
caught in plan review, we would have
made the nodifications.

| -- I nean, | -- | don't know.
| mean, you know, if it was caught in
pl an review, we woul d have been happy to
make any changes.

M5. HATCHER: Two wrongs don't
make a right. It was -- | would still
think the -- the burden should fall upon

you because you've done this before.
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These people are innocent. They don't
-- they don't know what this is going to
| ook I'ike. But as a builder, you go out
there and you walk that -- that -- that
pl ot of |and, and even when it's staked
out, you know that's sonething' s going
on outside of those pins.

MR. MCNEELY: Yeah. | -- |
mean, | -- | struggle with the fact that
you keep saying it's the Town of Kure
Beach's fault that you designed properly
-- you designed it inproperly and
subm tted sonething that doesn't neet
our codes. Yet you're throwng it at
the Town to say it's their fault because
t hey mi ght have m ssed sonething. That
happens all the tine in plan reviews,
and | ocal building inspectors catch it.
And it doesn't nean that it's -- it's
right that it's put -- it's not caught
in plan review. Not everything is
al ways caught in plan review. It can't
be. It's inpossible. | nean, if you
knew this was a variance, you could have

clouded it and nade sure that they knew
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this was a variance. But | -- | -- |
just -- | don't -- | don't understand
that it's the Town's fault that you
designed a property that did not neet
t he code and zoni ng?

M5. HATCHER: | have anot her

guestion. \Wat about the overhang?

Where's the overhang on this -- the --
on the top of the -- three-story house;
right?

MR. PI PER.  Uh- huh.

M5. HATCHER: How far overhang
do you have?

THE COURT REPORTER: I''msorry,
ma'am Can | get a yes for that answer?
You said uh-huh. Can you say yes or no?

MR. PIPER  Yes. Yes. The
over hang?

M5. HATCHER. Yeah. | -- |
can't see the top of the diagram

MR. PIPER  An 11 inch
over hang, ma' am

M5. HATCHER: A 9 inch?

MR. PIPER 11 inch, | believe.

MR. MCNEELY: The roof?
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MR PIPER | -- 1 don't know.
| would have -- | would have have to use
a scale and neasure it. If you're
asking for a specific nunber, | don't
know of f the top of ny head.

M5. HATCHER: Wl l, because the
-- we have -- those -- those are
actually part of the building codes
al so, so...

M5. WH TE: Yeah. The overhang
can -- that can encroach 18 inches into
the setback. Any architectural features
can encroach 18 inches into the side
set back.

MR PIPER | believe it's 11
i nches. 12 inch soffit with an 11 inch
-- with a 1 inch board around.

M5. HATCHER:  Yeah.

MR. NADEAU. But there's no
nonconpl i ance related to that though;
correct?

M5. WVWHHTE: No. There's --

MR. NADEAU: No, no. Ckay.

M5. HATCHER: Well, | was just

curious, just because | didn't see the
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rest of the -- the di

MR, MCNEELY:
cantil ever thing was
it would stil

M. VWH TE:

ground,

about the cantil ever.
would -- it still
set back on the side.

MR. Pl PER:

agram

So if this
not built off the
| not neet zoning?
Yeah. W tal ked

And, | nean, it

woul d not neet that

The cantil ever had

-- it had to be on the 10 foot si de.

Had to be on the other side;

M5. WH TE:
MR Pl PER
M5, VWH TE:
you can put it on the --

still wouldn't neet t
woul dn't -- | nean --
MR MCNEELY:
it's too --
M5, VHI TE:
MR MCNEELY:
w de?
M5, VWHI TE:

archi tectural

can extend further

feature. So,

right?
Yeah.

You can --

You can put it --
It just -- it
he setback, so it

| s that because

-- a cantil ever --
-- jt's still too
-- 1S considered an

again, it

into the setback.
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But it still wouldn't nmeet that. So we
-- the -- the effort of doing that would
make no sense.

MR PIPER W tried. |

mean - -
M. VHHTE: We -- we did talk
about it.
MR. PIPER  Yeah. And --
MR SELIG | just --
M. Piper, I -- 1 -- | had a -- a

bui | di ng done, too, and he nade it
clear, the contractor, when the -- now
this was a little different than this,
but made it real clear, 10 feet, not 10
feet 1 inch --

MR. PIPER Right.

MR SELIG -- 10 feet. So |
-- 1 knew when we pl aced the air
condi tioner right where it had to go,
because he knew.

MR PIPER | -- 1 -- you know,
t he setbacks are the setbacks. | nean,
it's -- it's a mstake. | nean, you
know, in the future, yes, | would know.

But, again, | nean, ny point is -- is,
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It was just a m stake that was made. |If
-- if the site plan did not show the
HVAC platform if it did not show

that -- it's -- it's just a -- it's a --
it -- it -- there's just a |ot of

m st akes that were nade.

You know, as soon as we
di scovered it, we -- we -- you know, we
contacted Bethany. You know, there --
there was no desire to -- to try and
f ool anybody.

MR. NADEAU. So that's -- and
-- and so what's transpired since August
27th? There's been no further work in
that area. You've sinply been waiting
to have this hearing?

MR. PIPER  Yes, sir. Yes,
sir. So we worked with Bethany, and we
tried to determne if we could
cantil ever sonething. W explored other
options. W explored different air
conditioning units, everything we could
do. And the final determ nation was
there was -- there was nothing we could
do.
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MR. MCNEELY: And -- and hel p
nme, Bethany. The 10 foot rear setback,

I f they were noved around to the rear,
woul d be for --

M5. WHITE: If I'm-- | believe
that the -- the structure sets the 10
foot setback. Am1 right, Todd?

MR PIPER If -- if the 10 --
and the rear, they don't do work either.

M5. WHITE: Yeah. | don't
think there was --

MR PIPER Had we known in the
begi nni ng, we woul d have nmade sone
adj ustnents and put them sonewhere el se.
W woul d have put themin the rear.

MR. MCNEELY: But | thought you
could do a platformin the rear that's
not as bad; right? I'mtrying to --

M5. HATCHER: Find a solution.

MR. MCNEELY: -- I'mtrying to
| ook for a solution.

M5. HATCHER: That's on the
docunent that | believe M. Piper --

MR. NADEAU. You made

ref erence --
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1 M5. HATCHER. -- the

2 application for an appeal --

3 MR. NADEAU:. You nmde reference

4 to an exception, Bethany, exception F

5 about structure serving required a 10

6 foot yard of a corner lot. W' re not

7 tal ki ng about corner |lot here; correct?

8 M5. VHTE W --

9 MR. MCNEELY: It is actually.
10 M5. WVHHITE: It is a corner |ot.
11 MR. NADEAU:. It is a corner
12 lot?

13 MR. MCNEELY: Right, yes.

14 M5. WH TE: Yeah. Yeah. That
15 -- that is the only exception to

16 equi pnent. So it's on that corner |ot
17 side wwth the 10 foot setback, it's

18 allowed to have a 5 foot setback on

19 there as well.

20 M5. HATCHER: You've noted in
21 here that there's other properties in
22 Kure Beach that have simlar

23 arrangenents establishing a precedent.
24 Do you have anything to show us for

25 t hat ?
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1 MR. PIPER  Well --

2 M5. HATCHER: Any exanpl es?

3 MR PIPER | think he said we
4 couldn't use precedents. But 435 Fort
5 Fi sher Boul evard South, the units --

6 units are actually touching at -- at

7 that. They're within 6 inches. And |
8 beli eve M. Deering, so --

9 MR. DEERI NG Yeah. | probably
10 have a picture on ny phone of that.

11 M5. HATCHER: And that was

12 approved? But -- | nean, did they --
13 MR. DEERING W don't know
14  that.

15 MR PIPER W don't -- we

16 don't know.

17 M5. HATCHER: | nean -- right.
18 MR PIPER Like I -- 1 don't
19 know.
20 MR. DEERING  There's lots of
21 -- 1 don't knowif | can testify.
22 there's lots of ACunits in -- in the
23 setback on -- in this town.
24 M5. HATCHER: Okay. Sonet hing
25 prior to --
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Page 67
MR. PIPER  Yeah.

M5. HATCHER: -- ol der hones.
| know a | ot of the ol der hones here
don't take up all the buil dabl e space.
They have yards and, you know, greenery
and plantings and it's not fromevery
build line to build Iine. So the -- the
thing that |I'mthinking about is when
all of these little small cottages are
torn down and these are put up, these
three-story -- excuse ne -- building
fromcorner to corner fromthe build
| ine and, oops, we forgot to put the --

t he pool equipnent in. COops, we forgot

-- we -- we weren't thinking about the
AC unit. | nean, what is it going to
| ook I'i ke --

MR PIPER | nean --

M5. HATCHER: -- 10 years down

the road, 20 years down the road?

MR PIPER | think this is --
l -- 1 -- 1 think thisis -- 1 -- 1 -- 1
don't see -- think you'll ever see this
again. | nmean, | -- | think that

Bet hany definitely wouldn't ever grant
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sonething like this. And | don't think
John -- 1 -- 1 don't know if John ever
granted sonething like this. | think
this was just a one-tinme mstake. |
don't know of any other buil der whose
had sonet hi ng shown on the site plan --
shown on the building plan that's cane
before you. | -- |I've heard of other
bui | ders and honeowners build sonet hi ng
that wasn't on the blueprints that --
then they get to the final and they
said, oh, we just didn't realize it. W
bunped this out and we nmade this change
and nobody realized it until we got to
the end. | nmean, |'ve seen that at

ot her Board of Adjuster neetings.

MR MCNEELY: The -- the w ndow
that's there --

MR PIPER  Yes, sir.

MR. MCNEELY: -- where's that
at on the elevation? On -- which w ndow
Is that along with the --

MR PIPER So that would be --
can we go to the el evations?

MS. LEE: Uh- huh.
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MR. MCNEELY: Yeah. Right
there. Just show ne which w ndow t hat
I S.

MR. PIPER  So that woul d be
this window right here, sir, in the
bat hr oom

MR. NADEAU:. That's the
bat hr oom wi ndow.

MR. MCNEELY: So it appears

that the units -- and here again, it's
just a picture -- aren't within the pad
ei t her.

M5. HATCHER:  Huh- uh.

MR. MCNEELY: It appears the
units are all the way down the |ength of
t he house or at |east hal fway down the
| ength of the house and not confined to
t he nmechani cal pad.

MR PIPER It -- it has to do
wWth the -- the way the photo is taken.

MR. MCNEELY: So you're saying
that those are all stubbed out within
the -- that distance of that nechanical
pad that's drawn there?

MR PIPER. Yes, sir. | -- 1
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-- 1 nmean, it has to do with the way the
photo was taken. But --

MS. HATCHER.  Okay.

MR. PIPER  -- whatever the
size of that platformis is the -- the
area that we're going to occupy wth air
conditioning units. | think it's 12
feet, sonething like that. 7, 8 -- so
it's 7 fromthe hash to hash. So this
area's 7 feet, and | believe that's 4
feet right there.

MR. MCNEELY: So that
platforms how big? 4 feet?

MR PIPER No. The platforms
12 feet by 30 inches.

MR. MCNEELY: Ckay.

MR PIPER  And we had
di scussed with Bethany if we nade the
platformas small as possible, if --
wWth --

MR. MCNEELY: Go back to that

pi cture, please.

MR PIPER -- with
cantilevering it, if -- if it would
still be -- I"'mlooking for the right
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words. If -- we would still be in
violation if the units thensel ves were
off the edge of the platform If we
could nake the platformin conpliance,
if -- if the units thensel ves were off
the platform and she said we would
still be out of conpliance.

MR. ELDRIDGE: My | interrupt
for a mnute. | want to nmake sure the
focus of this hearing is on point.

We' ve got an appeal that is seeking a
variance. |If you use the variance
provisions in the general statutes and
in the code as -- as a gui depost for
this appeal -- this -- this is a unique
situation, it's an appeal, and the
relief requested from-- it's an appeal
of the decision that the mechani cal
platformis |ocated wthin the setback
area in violation of the code. That's
the determnation. There is an appeal
of that determnation. And in that
appeal, the relief requested is a
variance. |If you use -- and for

pur poses of this hearing, since it was
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an appeal that was filed, we have

provi ded the code provisions for an
appeal. W haven't provided the
provisions for a variance. But they
were covered in Ms. Lee's presentation.
If you use the variance provisions as a
gui depost, if sonebody cones in and
requests a variance fromthe Board of

Adj ustnent, there's those four things
that they have to prove. |[If they prove
those four things by conpetent materials
and substantial evidence, they are
entitled to that variance, so much so
that if it -- if the variance is
erroneously declined or denied, | should
say, they can take it to court. And if
the court agrees that they have net
their burden, the court will order the
Board of Adjustnent to issue that

vari ance.

So it's not a question so nuch
as whet her the devel oper did sonething
wrong or whet her John Batson did
sonet hi ng wong. The issue that you

have to handl e i s whether the four
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conditions of the variance have been
net: |Is there a hardship; what unique
ci rcunstances contri buted to that
har dshi p; did the | andowner contri bute
to that hardship; and it -- does the
vari ance requested match the spirit in
-- of the ordinance. That's the
determnation that's in your hands right
now. Not whet her sonebody nade a
m stake in the draw ngs, not whet her
John made a mstake in the drawings. It
conmes down to those four elenents. And
If there're net, he's entitled -- the
applicant -- the appellants are entitled
to the variance. So please keep your
focus within the proper context.

MR. NADEAU:. Thank you. Thank
you.

MR. PIPER  Ckay. Thank you,

MR. NADEAU:. Any final
questions? Thank you -- thank you for
that. In the matter of order, | guess
|'"d ask is there any -- any --

MR ELDRI DGE: Rebut t al .
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MR. NADEAU:. -- rebuttal?
Thank you. Any rebuttal? Bethany or --

M5. WHITE: | don't have
anyt hi ng el se.

MR. NADEAU. All right. Dd
you have anyt hi ng?

M5. LEE: No, thank you.

MR. NADEAU. Ckay, no. Ckay.
Al right. Wth that, the Town Attorney
has provi ded us a worksheet that goes
t hrough the sunmary of evidence and
findings. W're good to wal k through
t hat now?

MR. ELDRIDCGE: Yes. And during
this phase, you're welcone to continue
aski ng questions if you need
clarification. The parties are not
permtted during this phase -- they've
al ready given their evidence, so there
won't be any cross-exam nations and all
that. But if you're ready, we'll go
ahead and wal k through the worksheet.

MR. NADEAU:. That's a good
| dea.

MR ELDRI DGE: Based on t he
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evi dence presented, you have to nake
findings of fact. W have to -- by
code, revision, statute, we have to cite
the evidence that supports those
findings of facts. And actually, they
go into the mnutes and into the
transcript.

So first we're going to
i dentify and summari ze the substantive
evi dence that was presented. And it
seens to ne that Exhibit 3, the Record
of Decision, Exhibit 1 the appellants'
-- the appellants' appeal docunent
application, Ms. Lee's presentation --
and | woul d suggest that the letter from
t he nei ghbor as --

MR. NADEAU:. Yeah.

MR ELDRIDGE: -- Exhibit 10
al so be entered, if you can give that
letter to Ms. Chase. | woul d suggest
that the appeal, the presentation, the
Record of Decision, and the letter from
t he nei ghbor are the substantive -- is a
good -- summarizes the substance into

evi dence that was presented.
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MR. NADEAU. W don't typically
I ncl ude the testinony?

MR, ELDRIDGE: Yes. You're
right. I|'mnot thinking clearly. But
that's correct as well. Chairman, |I'm
going to ask you to summarize briefly
what that evidence shows. | don't want
to -- that's your function. |'m not
saying you got to break it down to what
-- whi ch docunent presented what
evi dence. Just a nutshell summary of
what was -- been presented to the Board
t oni ght.

MR. NADEAU:. | think in

sunmary, the evidence shows that the

appellant filed all the proper -- filed
for all proper permts as would -- as
normal under -- follow ng the norna

procedures. The peopl e involved are
experienced. You know, we have a -- a
reput abl e builder who's built in Kure
Beach before. Foll owed nornma
procedures. Submtted what was

requi red. That underwent review by the

Town and was approved with no exceptions

Page 76

Legal Media Experts
800-446-1387




Thomas and Vanessa Deering
HEARING, on 11/26/2024

© 00 N o O b~ wWw N P

N DN D D NMNMDNN P P P PP,
aa A~ W N b O © 00 N O O A W N B O

noted. They proceeded in good faith to
construct the property as was approved.
And at sone point along the way, soneone
noti ced what appeared to be a possible

I ssue and -- and raised that concern
wth the Town -- people in the Town. So
t hey got reengaged and confirned that,
in fact, though the drawings and -- were
approved, the permt was issued, in
fact, there was a discrepancy and did
not conply with the setback and the code
t hat the Town has.

MR. ELDRIDGE: And you may have
mentioned it, but if you didn't, would
you add to that summary that the
bui | ding plan submtted with the permt
application did show the nechani cal
platformw thin the setback area.

MR. NADEAU. G eat point.

Yeah. It's clear that --

M5. HATCHER:  Yeah.

MR. NADEAU:. At |east according
to the standards and the testinony we
heard, what was subm tted woul d be

typical. And it did show what woul d be
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sufficient to nake a determ nation on
whet her or not it was conpliance with
set back.

MR. ELDRI DGE: Proceeding with
t he worksheet. W' ve got the
appel l ants' nane and address, so we're
not worried about that. | believe the
evi dence also will show the appell ants’
Interest in the subject property is as
owners. So we're not concerned about
t hat .

The deci sion bei ng appeal ed
fromis Ms. White's determ nation that
there is a setback -- nonconpliance with
t he set back requirenents.

Now we're going to get into the
findi ngs where we need a consensus from
the board. And we're not talking about
voting on each of these findings. W're
tal ki ng about a consensus. So let's
start off.

On or about January 9th, 2024,
appel lants did or did not submt to the
Town an application for a building

permt?
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MR, MCNEELY: It did.

M5. HATCHER: It did.

MR. NADEAU:. It did.

MR. ELDRI DGE: The application
did or did not include architectural
pl ans and engi neering plans and the
survey or sealed site plan?

M5. HATCHER: It did.

MR, MCNEELY: It did.

MR. NADEAU:. It did.

MR. ELDRI DGE: The buil ding
plans did or did not show the | ocation
of the mechanical platformwthin the
set back area?

The building plans did or did
not show the | ocation of the mechani cal
platformw thin the setback area?

MR. NADEAU:. | say they did,
but | --

M5. HATCHER:  You sai d HVAC?

MR, ELDRIDGE: Well, just think
of the testinony --

MR. NADEAU. The location of it
was shown in the drawing. According to

-- when | | ooked at that draw ng, |
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t hi nk agai n, based on what Bethany has
said, that -- that's typical of what
woul d be shown.

MR. ELDRIDGE: Well, | think
all of the witnesses that testified all
I ndi cated that the building plans,

i ncl uded with the permt application,
did show the --

MR. NADEAU: Yes.

MR. ELDRIDGE: -- nechani cal
pl atform being | ocated within the
setback area. Do you agree?

M5. HATCHER  Yes.

MR, MCNEELY: Yes.

IMR. NADEAU: Yes.

MR. ELDRI DGE: The buil ding
pl ans were or were not reviewed and
approved by the town's forner building
| nspector?

M5. HATCHER: They were.

MR. NADEAU: Unh- huh.

MR. ELDRI DGE: Said building
I nspector did or did not issue a
buil ding permit to the appellants?

M5. NADEAU:. It did.
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Page 81
MR. MCNEELY: It did.

M5. HATCHER It did.

MR. ELDRIDGE: Turn the page.
Ti dal Wave Hones, LLC, M. Piper's
conpany, did or did not conplete the
construction of the residenti al
structure?

M5. HATCHER: It did.

MR. NADEAU:. It did.

MR. MCNEELY: It did.

MR. ELDRI DGE: The construction
of the residential structure was in
accordance wth the approved buil di ng
pl ans; was or was not?

NADEAU: |t was.
HATCHER: |t was.
MCNEELY: It was.
ELDRI DGE: The bui |l di ng

22 P D

I nspector's issuance of the building
permt was or was not erroneous, Since
It allowed the placenent of the
mechani cal platformw thin the setback
area whi ch was shown on the buil di ng
pl ans?

MR, MCNEELY: It was.
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IMR. NADEAU: Yes.

MR. ELDRI DGE: The buil ding
I nspector's issuance of the building
permt was or was not erroneous?

M5. HATCHER |t was.

MR MCNEELY: It was.

MR ELDRIDGE: You got a
consensus on that?

MR. NADEAU:. | think it was.

MR. ELDRIDGE: In essence, did
M. Batson approve the plans even though
It showed a nechanical platformwthin
t he setback area?

MR MCNEELY: Yes.

MR. NADEAU:. It did.

M5. HATCHER: It did.

MR. NADEAU:. I'ma little hung
up on since it allowed placenent. |
mean, it was approved. It's not in
conpliance, but yet it was approved.

MR. ELDRI DGE: Yeah. These
findings will be reworded correctly when
| do the decision. But they're enough
to get us through this.

The relief requested by
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the appellants -- let me -- I'mgoing to
rephrase sone of these based on the
presentation of the variance to the
Board. So nunber 12 will be, the
appel l ants are seeking a vari ance as
relief in their appeal; correct?

M5. HATCHER  Yes.

MR, NADEAU: Yes.

MR, MCNEELY: Yes.

MR, ELDRIDGE: Al right.
Again, I'mgoing to reword 13, 14, 15,
and 16. So you need to listen to ne
I nstead of being able to read it on the
docunent .

M5. HATCHER:  Ckay.

MR. ELDRI DGE: Applying the
set back requirenent to appell ants’
property will or wll not create a
uni que hardship for the appellants?

Appl yi ng the setback
requirenments will or will not create a
uni que hardship for the appellants?

There was testinony about
tearing everything out, reengineering it

and relocating it, tinme and noney and
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expenses.
MR. MCNEELY: Who is the
appel | ant ?
MR. ELDRI DGE: The owners of
t he property.
MR. NADEAU:. Yeah, the owners
MR. ELDRIDGE: The people who

bought the building. Not M. Piper, M.

and Ms. Derring, who own the property

and contracted with Piper -- Tidal Wave

to build the structure.

MR. MCNEELY: | don't know if
we know the answer to that.

MR. ELDRI DGE: Based on the
testinony that you heard, did you --

MR. MCNEELY: But is the

bui | der paying for it or are they paying
for it?

MS. HATCHER. Ri ght.

MR, MCNEELY: | don't know that
we know the answer to that.

MR. ELDRIDGE: Well, you can --
you're -- you're welcone to try to
clarify that question to Ms. Lee.

M5. LEE: Wuld you like for ne
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to clarify?

MR MCNEELY: Sure. Yeah.

Ms. LEE: The cost woul d be the
Deeri ngs.

M5. HATCHER: Wul d be what ?

M5. LEE: The Deerings, the
owners of the property would be paying
the cost. And they would be suffering
the additional tine and expense
associated wth the relocation of the
units.

MR. ELDRIDGE: And the tine |ag
for, you know -- you're tal king nonths
to finish the house and relocate the
mechani cal pl atform

MR. NADEAU:. No doubt. | guess
-- | mean, | -- 1 -- | see it as a
hardship. It's the words -- you used
the word unique. | think Ms. Lee used
t he word unnecessary.

VMR, ELDRIDGE: Well, Ms. Lee's
-- |1 -- she's right, |I'"m wong.
Unnecessary hardshi p.

MR. NADEAU:. Because then

what's necessary --
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1 MR. ELDRIDGE: It cones into

2 t he next element, so. WII the

3 appel l ants suffer an unnecessary

4 hardship if the setback requirenents are
5 enf orced?

6 M5. HATCHER  Yes.

7 MR MCNEELY: Yes.

8 MR, NADEAU: Yes.

9 MR, ELDRIDGE: Al right.

10 Good. We got that.

11 Are there or are there not

12 uni que circunstances that resulted in
13  the hardshi p?

14 MR. MCNEELY: | would say yes.
15 MR, NADEAU: Yes.

16 MR MCNEELY: Yes.

17 MR. ELDRIDGE: And what woul d
18 t hat be?

19 MR. NADEAU. | think in this
20 case, we have an error nmade in the
21 approval, sonething we don't know why or
22 how but --
23 MR ELDRIDGE: M. Batson's
24 approval of the --
25 MR. NADEAU:. Approved the plan
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despite the fact that it showed it was
not in conpliance.

MR. ELDRI DGE: The unnecessary
hardship is or is not the result of the
| and owner's action or the appellants’
actions?

MS. HATCHER: | don't think

MR NEELY: [It's not.

M5. HATCHER: -- it has
anything to do with them

MR. ELDRIDGE: It does not.

M5. HATCHER: They didn't know
this.

MR. ELDRIDGE: And is the
vari ance requested by the appellants
consistent with the spirit and the
I ntent of the zoning regul ati ons?

M5. HATCHER: No.

MR. ELDRI DGE: And you --
again, you nmay want to ask M. Piper or
Ms. Lee to refresh your nenories on
t hat .

MR, NADEAU:. Can you repeat

that -- the question, again?
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MR. MCNEELY: Yeah. What was
t hat question?

MR. ELDRIDGE: Are the -- is
the variance that's requested by the
appel l ants consistent with the spirit
and the Town zoni ng regul ati ons?

MR. NADEAU. And |'d ask for
Ms. Lee to refresh ny nenory on that.

M5. LEE: Certainly. \Wen it
cones to the applicable zoning district,
RA- 3, the m ni mum si de set backs for
properties are 5 feet. And when it
cones to this property in particular, if
they were allowed to have the HVAC
platformw thin the setback, there would
still be 12 feet, which is greater than
the total m ninmum setback between two
properties.

Il will also note the additional
30 inches would be free on the majority
of the property. So it would just be
that distance, that 12 feet of the
property where that platformis
required. They would not be allowed to

encroach in other areas of -- of that
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property.

MR. NADEAU:. Thank you.

MR. ELDRIDGE: | would al so
turn your attention to the appeal
application itself. On page 3, the
appel l ant states as follows, "WII
granting the variance naintain the
community's aesthetic and functi onal
integrity?" And that's really one of
the functions of the Zoning Board, is to
mai ntai n aesthetic and functi onal
integrity.

The appel lants state as
follows, "granting the variance is the
nost appropriate and aesthetically
pl easi ng solution for the community.

The only alternative would be to

rel ocate the nechanical units along G
Avenue, a prom nent public thoroughfare.
This woul d necessitate stacking nultiple
AC units above each other, creating an
unattracti ve appearance inconsi stent

Wi th the nei ghborhood' s character. Such
an arrangenent would detract fromthe

vi sual harnony of the area and di m ni sh
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the curb appeal of the property. By

mai ntai ning the current configuration,

t he variance observes the high-quality
aesthetic of the hone and aligns wth
the overall standards of the comunity."

Based on that application or
that statenment by the appellants and
based on Ms. Lee's followup testinony
or -- yeah, testinony -- do you have a
concessus that the requested variance is
consistent with the spirit and intent of
the Town zoni ng ordi nances?

MR. NADEAU. | -- | do, based
on what they have provided. 1In
addition, | believe that the ordi nances
are based on -- and there for a reason,
of course, but when you have a honeowner
or a builder or soneone that wants to
build a hone follow the correct
procedures, using conpetent fol ks that
-- and they submt and they get
sonet hi ng back that's approved and they
proceed in good faith, to nme, if there's
no safety issue with what has been

approved, then the bar's pretty high in
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) Page 91
ny mnd to go and now conpel themto do

sonething differently in that -- again,
in good faith. They're very
transparent, made every effort to engage
the Town, didn't try and --

MR. ELDRI DGE: And i s what
they're asking for consistent with our
regul ati ons? Regul ati ons of zoning are
to provide public safety and pronote
general welfare and public safety and --
and -- sonething else that | forget.

MR. NADEAU:. In -- in that
sense to --

M5. HATCHER: Har noni ous.

MR. NADEAU:. To ne, in that
sense, | think it is.

MR ELDRIDGE: All right.

MR. NADEAU:. But | don't want
to speak for the others here.

MR. MCNEELY: In that sense, |
agr ee.

MR ELDRI DGE: Does everyone
agree in that viewoint? Do you all
share in that viewoint?

MR MCNEELY: | agree.
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M5. NADEAU:. Unh- huh.

M5. HATCHER:  Yeah.

MR. ELDRIDGE: That brings us
to conclusions. The appellant does or
does not have standing to appeal the
adm ni strative decision? They own the
property. | think they -- and the code
provi des for the appeal, so | think they
do have standi ng.

Under KBC 12. 06. 040, the Board
is or is not authorized to hear and
deci de appeals of adm nistrative
deci sions? You are --

MR, MCNEELY: It is.

MR. ELDGRIDGE: -- and we're
here under that authority.

Pur suant to KBC 12. 06. 050. J,
the Board is or is not authorized to
reverse, affirm or nodify, wholly or
partly, the decision appealed by -- it
says appealed from--

M5. CHASE: Hey, Jim | hate to
interrupt. But have they closed the
hearing for this part?

MR. ELDRIDGE: They're going to
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close it after the findings.

M5. CHASE: Ckay. You have it
on the order of business to close it
first.

MR. NADEAU:. That was in the
Order of Hearing.

M5. CHASE: It says, close the
hearing, then conclude wth the decision
vot e.

MR, MCNEELY: Yes.

MR. ELDRIDGE: Onh, we're at the
conclusion. Yeah. Chairman, if you
coul d cl ose the hearing.

MR. NADEAU. Ckay. | hereby
say the hearing's been cl osed.

( HEARI NG CLOSED. )

MR. ELDRIDGE: And let's get
back to our concl usions.

THE COURT REPORTER. Am | goi ng
off the record?

MS. CHASE: No.

THE COURT REPORTER  Ckay.

MR. ELDRI DGE: Taking up where
| left off. The Board shall make any

order, requirenent, decision, or
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determ nation that ought to be nade?
You do have that authority under
t hat code provi sion.

MR, NADEAU: Yes.

MR. ELDRIDGE: The fi nal
conclusion that |'ve got is, appellants’
bui |l ding permt was erroneously issued;
was or was not?

M5. HATCHER |t was.

MR. NADEAU:. It -- well, it's
not -- the issue is not wwth howit was
| ssued. The issue is that what was
submtted -- it was approved despite the
fact that it showed nonconpli ance.

M5. HATCHER: Ri ght.

MR. NADEAU:. So | guess nmaybe
semantics there, but --

VR. ELDRI DCE: To rephrase the
guestion: Did Batson nake a m stake in
approving that -- those building plans
when it showed the nechanical platform
within the required setback area?

MR. NADEAU. That's correct.

MR, MCNEELY: Yes.

M5. HATCHER  Yes.
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Page 95
MR MCNEELY: Yes.

MR, ELDRIDGE: You are now at
the point where you can deliberate in
open session anongst yoursel ves and nake
a decision on this appeal that seeks a
variance. | ask you to keep in mnd ny
previ ous comments about the
aut hori zation to grant a variance if
t hose el enents are net.

MR. NADEAU. All right.
Thought s?

M5. HATCHER. So --

( OFF- THE- RECORD DI SCUSSI ON. )

M5. CHASE: «Quys, if you're
goi ng to speak, you need to speak for
everyone to hear. Right, JinP

MR. NADEAU:. |'msorry, what?

M5. CHASE: You have to speak
up.

MR. NADEAU:. Speak up. Yeah.
This is a public --

M5. CHASE: Public --

M5. HATCHER: Onh, | thought he
said --

MR. NADEAU:. -- supposed to be
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public, but, no, we're --

M5. HATCHER: | though he said
anongst oursel ves.

MR. NADEAU. W can talk
anongst ourselves, but --

M5. LEE: Yeah. It just has to
be | oud enough --

MR. NADEAU. So everyone can
hear what we're sayi ng.

MR. ELDRIDGE: | nean, in open
session, not in closed session.

M5. CHASE: Yeah. I'msorry --

MR. NADEAU: [It's open,
correct.

M5. HATCHER: |'m sorry.

MR. MCNEELY: So ny only
guestion is why they couldn't have been
relocated to this side and it would have
been within all the variances --

MR. NADEAU. Well --

MR, MCNEELY: -- it wouldn't
have been a hardship. It -- it -- it
woul d have been a hardshi p because, |
nmean, aesthetically with their pool, but

It could have just been flipped to the
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ot her side and had all the ordinances,
but --

MR ELDRIDGE: Can | get you to
speak up a little bit so everybody can
hear you?

M5. CHASE: Speak into your
m cr ophone.

MR. MCNEELY: | just -- ny --
my -- ny question still was --

MR. ELDRIDGE: That -- | -- |
caught it. | just want to nake sure
that we speak clearly enough --

MR MCNEELY: Yes.

MR. ELDRI DGE: -- for everybody
to hear.

MR. MCNEELY: But they couldn't
have just been flipped to the other side
I nstead of on the backside. They said
that they could only be along G Street.
Wiy they couldn't have just gone to the
other side directly south from where
they' re shown on the plan.

MR. NADEAU. Well --

MR. MCNEELY: And it wouldn't

have been that nuch of a hardship.
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Because the lines have to run from
probably the center of the house to the
wal | anyway. So they woul d have been
run to -- still to an outside wall.

M5. WHITE: It woul d not have
been in conpliance in the backyard
either. There wasn't room

MR. MCNEELY: It's not in the
backyard. It's in the side yard. |If

you put it --
M5. WHI TE:  You nean --
MR. MCNEELY: -- in the
little -- in that little al cove there?
M5. WHHTE: Right. | nean, it

coul d have been nodified in the
begi nning. Surely could have put it
t here.

MR. MCNEELY: Yeah.

M5. WH TE: But at that point,
there was --

MR. MCNEELY: \What, the pool
was al ready there?

M5. WHI TE: Tal ki ng about the
pool .

MR. MCNEELY: Yeabh. It could
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have gone into the pool area.

MR. NADEAU:. | think the point
was what we heard was that --

MR. MCNEELY: | nean, they
didn't have to be --

THE COURT REPORTER  Can we
have one person talking at a tine,
pl ease?

MR. MCNEELY: |'mjust saying,
they didn't have to go into G Street.

M5. CHASE: Yeah. There should

be no --
MR. ELDRI DGE: Back-and-forth.
M5. CHASE: -- rebuttal. No
back-and-forth.
MR. ELDRIDGE: It's -- it's

your discussion. And you've already
gone past the point --

MR. MCNEELY: | think --

MR. ELDRIDGE: -- where you can

ask foll owup questions for the

W t nesses.

MR. MCNEELY: | think that it's
not fair to the honeowner. | think it's
a bad situation. | think it could have
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been rectified. But | don't think it's
fair that the honmeowner to nmake a
novenent at this point, is ny --

MR, ELDRIDGE: Now, I'll rem nd
you that you' ve already made a finding
of fact that there is an unnecessary
har dshi p.

MR. MCNEELY: Yeah. That's
what | said.

MR. ELDRI DGE: Ckay.

MR. NADEAU. Right. So where
we are now, we've gone through -- we, |
t hi nk, convi nced ourselves that, you
know, a variance is justified. W've
nmet the requirenents. A matter of --
now of deciding what -- what are the --
what action. Now, M. Lee has asked for
a wai ver.

MR ELDRIDGE: |'mnot sure
that's the correct term nol ogy.

MR. NADEAU. Yeah, it's --

MR. ELDRI DGE: But what | think
-- and Ms. Lee, tell me if you disagree
with ne -- if you were granting a

vari ance, you would grant a variance
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1 fromthe setback requirenents with

2 respect to the |ocation of the

3 mechani cal platformon that property; do

4 you agree”?

) M5. LEE: | agree.

6 MR MCNEELY: We agree.

7 MR. NADEAU:. Ckay. So we want

8 to grant the vari ance.

9 MR, ELDRIDGE: Well, you m ght
10 want to entertain a notion to grant the
11 vari ance requested by the appell ants.

12 Let me think how ! would word it if |
13 were you. Entertain a notion to grant a
14 variance fromthe setback requirenents
15 with respect to the location of the

16 mechani cal platform sonething al ong

17 t hose | i nes.

18 MR. NADEAU. Do | -- do | have
19 a notion to grant the variance?

20 MR SELIG | would just like
21 to say one thing. | think it's very

22 unfortunate, and this shoul dn't happen,
23 and it shouldn't happen again. That's
24 all I want to say.

25 MR, ELDRIDGE: You're not

Legal Media Experts
800-446-1387



Thomas and Vanessa Deering
HEARING, on 11/26/2024

Page 102
1 tal ki ng about ne, are you?

2 MR SELIG No. Absolutely

3 not. GCkay. |I'msorry. | just wanted
4 to get that out there.

5 M5. CHASE: When it cones to

6 the notion, you need to actually say --
7 you can't just say do you have a notion.
8 You need to say --

9 M5. HATCHER: Yeah. To grant a
10 variance to --

11 MR. MCNEELY: | nake a notion
12 that we grant a variance to allowthe
13 mechani cal units to be in the 5 foot

14 set back on the side -- 5 foot side yard
15 set back at 500 South Fort Fisher Street.
16 M5. CHASE: Perfect. NMotion
17 second?

18 MR. NADEAU. |I'Ill second it.

19 M5. CHASE: Al right. Al in
20 favor?
21 MR. NADEAU:. Those in favor --
22 all in favor say aye?
23 M5. HATCHER  Aye.
24 MR, MCNEELY: Aye.
25 MR, NADEAU: Aye.
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MR ELDRIDGE: One final

comrent, |'ll draft the -- the deci sion.

And it will take ne alittle bit -- a

while to get that done. And now we --

MR. NADEAU: All right. W

need a -- a notion to close it out? Do
| have a -- a -- a notion to adjourn?
MR. MCNEELY: | nmke a notion

t hat we adj ourn.
MR. NADEAU:. |'Ill second it.
Thank you. We're adjourned.
( THE HEARI NG CONCLUDED AT 7:26 P.M)
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CERTI FI CATE

State of North Carolina
County of Wake

I, Kylie Flem ng, a notary public in and
for the State of North Carolina, do
hereby certify that I was the court
reporter at the aforenentioned

proceedi ngs and that the foregoing is a
true, correct, and full transcript of

t he proceedi ngs herein.

I further certify that | am not counsel
for, nor in the enploynent of any of the
parties to this action; that | am not
rel ated by blood or narriage to any of
the parties, nor am| interested, either
directly or indirectly, in the results
of this action.

In W tness whereon, | have hereto set ny
hand, this the 30th day of Decenber,
2024.

Kylie Flem ng
Court Reporter
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